State of F	Iorida   RECEIVED-FPS Fublic Service Commission   08 JUL 30 PH 2: TB all Circle Office Center • 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard   COMMISSION -M-E-M-O-R-A-N-D-U-M-
VO WEI	CLERK
DATE:	July 30, 2008
TO:	Rosanne Gervasi, Senior Attorney, Office of the General Counsel
FROM:	William F. Costor, Operations Review Specialist, Division of Regulatory Compliance
RE:	080436-EI - Request for confidential classification of portions of staff's <i>Review of</i> <i>Fuel Procurement Hedging Practices of Florida's Investor-Owned Electric Utilities</i> by Tampa Electric Company. Documents: 05269-08 and 05183-08

Attached is a June 18, 2008 request (document 05183-08) and June 19, 2008 supplement request (document 05269-08) from Tampa Electric Company counsel, James Beasley. These documents include the company's request for Specified Confidential Classification on portions of staff's *Review of Fuel Procurement Hedging Practices of Florida's Investor-Owned Electric Utilities*. The company cites §366.0963(3)(d) and §366.0963(3)(e), F.S.—which address contractual data and competitive interests, respectively—as the basis for the request.

Staff has reviewed these requests and believe that the specified information is covered by §366.0963(3)(d) and (3)(e), F.S. Staff recommends the approval of Tampa Electric Company's Request for Confidential Classification on portions of staff's *Review of Fuel Procurement Hedging Practices of Florida's Investor-Owned Electric Utilities*.

COM	[]
ECR	
GCL	
OPC	
RCP	
SSC	
SGA	
ADM	
	Marcine
4	Marguesete

DOCUMENT NUMBER-DATE

06688 JUL 30 8

FPSC-COMMISSION CLERK

## AUSLEY & MCMULLEN

ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW

227 SOUTH CALHOUN STREET P.O. BOX 391 (ZIP 32302) TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32301 (850) 224-9115 FAX (850) 222-7560

080434 RE-

June 18, 2008

#### HAND DELIVERED

Ms. Ann Cole, Director Office of Commission Clerk Florida Public Service Commission 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

ECEVED-FPSC JUN 18 PM 3:

Re: UNDOCKETED – Review of Fuel Procurement Hedging Practices of Florida's Investor-Owned Electric Utilities

Dear Ms. Cole:

JDB/pp Enclosure

Cini,

Enclosed for filing in the above-styled matter are the original and fifteen (15) copies of Tampa Electric Company's Request for Confidential Classification of information contained in the Staff's draft audit report of Review of Fuel Procurement Hedging Practices of Florida's Investor-Owed Electric Utilities dated June 2008.

Please acknowledge receipt and filing of the above by stamping the duplicate copy of this letter and returning same to this writer.

Thank you for your assistance in connection with this matter.

Sincerely,

ames D. Beasley

DOCUMENT NEMBER (DAT)

0518BOCUNTERSMUMBER-DATE

FPSC-COMMISSDIDD B JUL 30 8

FPSC-COMMISSION CLERK

#### BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

In re: Review of Fuel Procurement	
Hedging Practices of Florida's.	
Investor-Owned Electric Utilities.	

UNDOCKETED FILED: June 18, 2008

#### TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY'S REQUEST FOR CONFIDENTIAL CLASSIFICATION

Tampa Electric Company ("Tampa Electric" or "the company"), pursuant to Section 366.093, Florida Statutes, and Rule 25-22.006, Florida Administrative Code, hereby requests confidential classification of the highlighted information contained on Bates stamp pages 20, 23, 24, 30 and 31 of the Staff's draft audit report dated June 2008 in the above matter, with the duration of that confidential classification to be a minimum of three years. In support of its request, Tampa Electric states as follows:

1. Tampa Electric is submitting under separate cover a single confidential version of the Staff's draft audit report with confidential information highlighted in yellow and marked "CONFIDENTIAL" in red on Bates stamp pages 20, 23, 24, 30 and 31 of the Draft Audit Report.

2. Subsection 366.093(1), Florida Statutes, provides that any records "found by the Commission to be propriety confidential business information shall be kept confidential and shall be exempt from s. 119.07(1) [requiring disclosure under the Public Records Act]." Proprietary confidential business information includes, but is not limited to "[i]nformation concerning . . . contractual data, the disclosure of which would impair the efforts of the public utility or its affiliates to contract for goods or services on favorable terms." Subsection 366.093(3)(d), Florida Statutes. Proprietary confidential business information also includes "[i]nformation relating to competitive interests, the disclosure of which would impair the competitive business

DOCUMENT NUMBER DATE

05183 JUN 18 8 FPSC-COMMISSION CLERK of the provider of the information." Section 366.093(3)(e). The designated portions of the Staff's draft audit report fall within these statutory categories and, thus, constitute propriety confidential business information entitled to protection under Section 366.093, Florida Statutes, and Rule 25-22.006, Florida Administrative Code.

3. Attached hereto as Exhibit "A" is a written justification for the requested confidential treatment of the highlighted portions of the Staff's draft audit report.

4. Attached hereto as Exhibit "B" are two public versions of the Staff's draft audit report with the confidential information redacted.

5. The highlighted information contained in the Staff's draft audit report for which confidential classification is sought is intended to be and is treated by Tampa Electric as private and has not been publicly disclosed.

#### **Requested Duration of Confidential Classification**

6. Tampa Electric requests that the confidential portions of the Staff's draft audit report be treated by the Commission as confidential proprietary business information for a minimum of three years. The draft report provides detailed hedging strategies and discloses details concerning counterparty relationships, many of which are of a continuing nature and which could be in place well beyond the standard 18 month period that confidential information is treated by the Commission as such. The various risk management strategy components build upon each other and disclosing components of the company's hedging strategy sooner than three years after it is submitted would arm would-be suppliers of goods and services, as well as competitors of Tampa Electric, with significant information regarding the company's risk management strategies. A minimum of three years is essential to prevent those entities in the fuel and purchased power markets from having access to information they could use to the competitive disadvantage of Tampa Electric, which would increase the fuel and purchased power costs borne by Tampa Electric's customers. A minimum of three years is also necessary to insure that Tampa Electric's counterparty relationships are not harmed and that potential new counterparty relationships are not compromised or discouraged.

WHEREFORE, Tampa Electric Company respectfully requests that the highlighted information set forth on Bates stamp pages 20, 23, 24, 30 and 31 of the Staff's draft audit report dated June 2008 be accorded confidential classification for the reasons set forth above.

DATED this 16 day of June 2008.

2

Respectfully submitted,

Coben L

LEZ L. WILLIS JAMES D. BEASLEY Ausley & McMullen Post Office Box 391 Tallahassee, Florida 32302 (850) 224-9115

ATTORNEYS FOR TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY

#### JUSTIFICATION FOR CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT OF HIGHLIGHTED PORTIONS OF TAMPA ELECTRIC'S RESPONSES TO STAFF'S DRAFT AUDIT REPORT OF FUEL PROCUREMENT HEDGING PRACTICES OF <u>FLORIDA INVESTOR-OWNED ELECTRIC UTILITIES</u>

<u>Bates Stamp</u> Page No.	Confidential Information	<b>Justification</b>
20	Yellow Highlighted Information	(1)
23	Yellow Highlighted Information	(1)
24	Yellow Highlighted Information	(1)
30	Yellow Highlighted Information	(2)
31	Yellow Highlighted Information	(2)

- The information in question discloses details regarding Tampa Electric's physical or (1) financial hedging strategy in that it discloses a breakdown of actual or targeted natural gas purchases by percentage. Disclosing the highlighted information in the draft audit report would provide highly sensitive information to recipients regarding the manner and timing of Tampa Electric's entry into the fuel market. Knowledge of this information would allow others an opportunity for market manipulation through transactions made in anticipation of the company's natural gas purchasing priorities. Market manipulations based on knowledge of the highlighted information could significantly increase the price of natural gas purchased by Tampa Electric and paid for by its customers. Such disclosure would impair the efforts of Tampa Electric to contract for goods and services on favorable terms for the benefit of its customers. The Commission on a number of occasions has granted Tampa Electric's request for confidential classification of portions of the company's Risk Management Report consisting of the same type of information for which confidential classification is sought in the draft Staff audit report filed this date.
- (2) The information in question discloses details concerning the counterparties with which Tampa Electric has counterparty relationships including the identities of the counterparties and details regarding their credit rankings and credit limits. There are a number of present and potential counterparties with whom Tampa Electric may wish to deal in executing its hedging strategy. Disclosure of the identities of current counterparties, their credit ratings and credit limits would arm other potential counterparties with information concerning what Tampa Electric deems acceptable counterparty qualifications. All of these present and potential counterparties which whom Tampa Electric currently has relationships could adversely affect Tampa Electric's efforts to retain existing counterparty relationships and/or negotiate new relationships. Disclosure of this type of information could lessen Tampa Electric's ability to negotiate

EXAMPLES NUMBER DATE 05183 JUN 188 FPSC-COMMISSION CLERK for goods and services on favorable terms and thereby increase costs to the company's customers. As such, the information in question is entitled to protection against public disclosure pursuant to Section 366.093, Florida Statutes, and the Commission's Rule 25-22.006, Florida Administrative Code.

• •

Review of



Exhibit "B"

DOCUMENT NUMBER DATE 05183 JUN 188

----

Jon of the second se . 2 • • •

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

٠

•

•

1.0	EXE	CUTIVE SUMMARY
	1.1	Objectives
	1.2	Scope
	1.3	Methodology
	1.4	Overall Opinion
2.0	RAC	KGROUND AND PERSPECTIVE
2.0	2.1	Commission Hedging Order
	2.2	Hedging Principles
	2.2	Financial Exchange and Over-the Counter Transactions
	2.5 2.4	Financial Derivatives and Instruments
	2.5	Margins and Credit Agreements
	2.6	Accounting for Hedges
	2.7	Internal Controls
3.0	FLO	RIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
	3.1	Fuel Procurement
	3.2	Hedging Strategy
	3.3	Risk Performance
4.0	GUL	LF POWER COMPANY
	4.1	Fuel Procurement
	4.2	Hedging Strate
	4,3	Risk Performance.
5.0	PRO	OGRESSENERGYFLORIDA
	5.1	Inel Prosures ont
	5.2	Heding Shategy
	5.3	
6.0		THE LECTRIC COMPANY
	XN	Fuel Procurement
ſ	6	Hedging Strategy
	6	Risk Performance
		PENDIX

111

## TABLE OF EXHIBITS

.

,

.

<u>Chapter</u> iv 4

## **1.0 Executive Summary**

## 1.1 Objectives

At the request of the Florida Public Service Commission's (the Commission) Division of Economic Regulation, the Division of Competitive Markets and Enforcement conducted a review of the fuel procurement hedging programs currently in place within the four investorowned generating electric utilities operating in Florida: Florida Power & Light Company (FP&L), Gulf Power Company (Gulf Power), Progress Energy Florida, Inc. (PER), and Tanpa Electric Company (TEC). Each of these companies engage in hedging programmast and to minimize risk and to manage price volatility associated with the procurement of fue for utility generation.

The primary objectives of this review were to:

- Document and assess current and historical hedging strategies of the fuel procurement hedging programs within each company.
- Document each company's management phile why to vary nedging activities.
- Determine if each company's hedging program is in compliance with the Proposed Resolution of Issues set forth in Compliance No. PSC-02-1484-FOF-EI (Hedging Order).
- Evaluate the hedging objectives set forth in each company's Risk Management Plans filed in the Fuel and Purglased Power cost Recovery docket each year.
- Quantify the net costs as the enefits of each company's hedging programs.
- Document rule and orders issued by other state commissions regarding electric utilities' hedging programs

### 1.2 Scope

A dit starf's review examines hedging processes designed to mitigate the impact of neertan fuel prices on consumers. Specifically, audit staff examined the structure and erformance of hedging natural gas and fuel oil through the use of physical purchases and/or in neighbors for the years 2003 through 2007.

The scope of the review concentrated on the three main areas within each company's nedging program:

Ę,

· .\*

- Fuel procurement process
- Hedging strategy

Risk performance

Within these three areas, audit staff focused on examining the company's procurement and hedging planning process along with the evaluation of the creditworthiness of financial relationships.

#### 1.3 Methodology

Audit staff's review was conducted from December 2007 to May 2008. The infor ation compiled in this report was gathered via company responses to document results. onvite interviews with key personnel, documents filed as part of the Commission's fuel and Juronased power cost recovery dockets, and various industry resources. Specific informatio **collected** includes company policies and procedures, organizational charts, Risk M Plans, and ma historical hedging transactions. Analysis of this information is dis d in detail in chapters three through six.

#### 1.4 Overall Opinion

Since 2002, the Hedging Order has provided direction on how the state's investor-owned electric utilities formulate their fuel hedging strategies. During the past five years, each company has developed and strengthened its bearing positions within the commodities market. A driving factor towards this increased participation is the overall commodity sector's growing acceptance and reliance on the futures' market.

Each company shares a universal goal in purchasing financial hedges for its fuel procurement; that is, to reduce the impacts of the price extremes that can occur in the natural gas and fuel oil markets. The companies are not attempting to become speculators in the market. Rather each is working to subjuze its annual fuel costs by initiating and settling financial hedging transactions though authorized financial counterparties. As a matter of practice, knowing precisely here much a unlity should hedge is difficult to gauge given the highly dynamic nature of intura gas and fuel oil markets.

#### Fuel Froedremont

The vent ting fleets of the four utilities examined differ in fuel consumption and fuel types. These differences directly impact the company's procurement and hedging strategies. Also, because on these differences, audit staff can not make direct comparisons between each company. Overall, companies which are more reliant on natural gas and fuel oils for base load eneration have a greater exposure to the negative effects of these markets. These utilities have las room for error if their hedging strategies are off-target. ATTACHMENT A details each company's fuel generation mix. Audit staff believes that each utility has appropriate tools and systems in place to accurately forecast and implement its fuel procurement and generation needs.



#### **Hedging Strategy**

Under the current Commission Hedging Order, each utility is allowed to hedge, in a nonspeculative manner, up to 100 percent of its forecasted fuel procurement volume. The annual hedging volumes have differed significantly during the review period, both between companies and within individual companies' year-to-year goals. Some utilities have been more conservative, hedging only half of their fuel volume, while other utilities have hedged away majority of their fuel volume. If a utility hedges too little or too high of a percentage of its hedging volume, it could negate the goal of price stability. Hedging too little will allow a greater portion of the market price to impact the company's fuel prices. Hedging up to 100 percent of its fuel forecast does the opposite by eliminating the diversifying impact created wellowing a percentage of the market price to influence fuel costs.

Hedging up to 100 percent of its forecast causes a company to be supplieded if a decline in actual fuel consumption occurs at the time of the financial settlement. While each company has a formulated process for calculating its anticipated fiel consumption, a number of factors can cause these forecasts to exceed the actual consumption. Audit st ff believes that each company's acceptable target hedging range will differ based on such wants as generation and fuel mix. Each company should strive towards achieving its goal of reducing price volatility by establishing a hedging target that maximizes its strategy. Accomparison of each company's 2007 hedging strategies is found in ATTACHMENT B.

Audit staff believes that the use of aution and conterparties is an acceptable relationship for initiating financial hedging transactions a tach unity has stringent policies and procedures in place for evaluating and authorizing financial counterparties. Also, each company utilizes the International Swap and Derivatives Association master agreement for its trading standard. The utilities do not pay fees or transaction costs when initiating or settling a swap transaction with these counterparties. They only pay the prescribed premiums for collar and option transactions. Overall, each utility has relationships with the most stable, top-tier financial institutions, which serves to limits exposed risk to the utility. As seen in the recent economic downturn, financial institutions can experience weak as or collapse, but each company has processes in place to minimize the potential impact of such events.

#### Risk assessment

While each of the four Florida investor-owned generating utilities participates in this process, each has a distinct approach to initiating and implementing its hedging strategy. Audit staff recognizes that there is more than one path to achieving a prudent hedging strategy, and difference between companies do not represent inherently correct or incorrect approaches. Audit suff has, however, observed some overall concerns with the companies' hedging processes and their implementation of the Hedging Order.

The Hedging Order requires that each utility annually provides a detailed Risk Minagement Plan that outlines the company's approach to risk assessment and overall hedging strategy. The Order requires that:

Each investor-owned electric utility shall submit...its risk management plan for fuel procurement. For purposes of this proposed resolution, each risk

management plan shall address the following items set forth in Exhibit TFB-4 to this prefiled testimony...in this docket: items 1, 2, 3 (to the extent possible), 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 13, 14, and 15. The information provided as part of each risk management plan should emphasize the utility's numerical assessment of an acceptable level of price risk for each type of fuel and for purchased power, the method used to determine the acceptable level of risk, identification of the mechanisms to mitigate risk above the acceptable level, and a valuation of that risk in dollars, where possible. The information provided as part of each p management plan shall include the quantities of fuel and purchased power that each utility expects to hedge through physical and financial hedging, to the such forecast are made. Filing of such risk management plans for informa purposes shall not constitute approval or disapproval by the Contain sion. In addition, each investor-owned electric utility shall submit, as part of its that the up filing in the fuel and purchased power cost recovery docket each ar, a report indicating the success of its risk management activitie with st to the objectives set forth in its risk management plan.<sup>1</sup>

While each company has provided annual plans, overall, auth starf does not believe these plans have met the requirements or spirit of the Commission's Hedging Order during the review period. There have been varying degrees of compliater, with one companies providing greater detail than others. However, deficiencies were observed nevery instance. The intent of the Risk Management Plan is to provide the Commission staff with necessary information to accurately and independently assess the operall merits of each company's hedging strategy. Without a detailed, robust plan, Commission staff is hindered from assessing the overall prudence of each company's planned surtegy. The Hedging Order is also specific as to what criteria should be included within the plan. A copy of the plan requirements is included as ATTACHMENT C.

Specifically, it is critical that each company provides to the Commission its annual hedging volume goals, that company's Risk Committee establishes its annual goal, and this information should be per the current order, included in its Risk Management Plan. The Hedging Order is specific on what criteria should be included in the Risk Management Plans. Audit staff believes that each company should include the detailed information as required by the Hedging Order to provide the Division of Economic Regulation staff with information to assist in the assessment of the prudence of each company's program. The Division of Economic Regulation should proactively evaluate the Risk Management Plans and provide each company with any concent pregarding goals, plans, or strategies.

Overall, audit staff believes that the use of financial hedges for fuel purchases provides a bunefit to utility customers. Each program is appropriately controlled, efficiently organized, and operates under a non-speculative format. There are areas for improvement, which are outlined later in each company's chapter. Generally, each company has successfully mitigated the price polatility for its customers. There have been years in which each company's hedging program provided a gain on its fuel cost, and years when each program has incurred losses. This is to be expected. Hedging commodities involve the risk of higher prices at the expense of attempting to

P 5, Proposed Resolution of Issues. Florida Public Service Commission Order No. PSC-02-1484-FOF-EI



reduce price volatility. For each company, there is an acceptable level of risk tolerance between the two. Each utility must continue to gauge its customers' tolerance of the cost associated with hedging versus the benefits of reduced fuel cost volatility and any resulting rate increases.

Chapters three through six contain audit staff's detailed analysis of each company hedging process. Audit staff's specific opinion for each company is included below.

#### 1.4.1 Florida Power & Light

#### 1.4.2 Gulf Power Company

#### 1.4.3 Progress Energy Florida

#### **1.4.4 Tampa Electric Company**

Audit staff believes that Tampa Electric has developed an effective hedging program. The company has achieved its goal of decreasing volatility of the price of its natural gas purchases during 2003 through 2007. The company's hedging goals and purchases have been consistent and are non-speculative.

Tampa Electric Company's hedging goal is a maintain supply reliability while minimizing fuel price volatility. The company has accived this goal by implementing a nonspeculative financial hedging strategy for itenatural gas purchases. Tampa Electric employs a layered hedging strategy that allows its financial hedges to be purchased up to 24 months out from settlement. During the 24 month period, we company will continue to purchase financial hedges up to the maximum established target. This allows the company to be more effective at averaging the impacts of market cosh over the

Audit staff notes the following positions from its review of the Tampa Electric:

- The company's policies and procedures provide appropriately detailed and clear understanding of the resionsibilities and expectations surrounding the company's hedging rooman.
- The contrary has not incurred any fees associated with purchases of financial swaps from its counterparties.

Electric's Internal Audit division has placed adequate focus and resources munitoring its hedging process.

The hedging relationship between Tampa Electric and its affiliate Peoples Gas System should be monitored to ensure neither company's customers are disadvantaged by this relationship.

 Audit staff believes that TEC's front, middle, and back office organizational structure is adequate and provides the company with the appropriate separation of

duties necessary to prevent variances from the approved trading procedures. Each independent office has detailed procedures outlining its responsibilities.

- There are two points which audit staff does not believe the Risk Management Plans have met the requirements of the Hedging Order:
  - Verify that the utility's corporate risk policy clearly delineates individual and group transaction limits and authorizations for all fuel procurem at activities.
  - Verify that the utility has sufficient policies and procedures to implement its strategy.

· · ·		
		$\mathcal{A}^{\prime}$
		Х <sup>°</sup>
N'		
<b>U</b>		
Background and Perspective	•	•

## 2.0 Background and Perspective

As part of the Commission's Fuel Cost Recovery filings, electric utilities are required to file with the Commission the estimated costs for fuel procurement for the upcoming year plus any cost true-ups required to align actual costs with estimated costs for the current year. The Fuel Cost Recovery filings are submitted annually, but supplemental midcourse filings may be submitted when intra-year corrections to factors are necessary to ensure that the factor do not become substantially out of line with actual costs.

During the winters of 2000 and 2001, spikes in natural gas prices across the nation resulted in an unexpected burden to many ratepayers. These fuel price spikes triggered significant midcourse corrections to factors for certain utilities. The best information vailable at the time was that price volatility would continue for the foreseeable function. This belief was borne out with additional natural gas price spikes in 2003 and 2005.

Following the midcourse corrections in 2000 and 2001, numerous complaints were filed with the Commission by ratepayers regarding impacts to their ball. This prompted the Commission to look for ways to protect consumers from processed fuel prices. At the direction of the Commission, the utilities and interested parties cance together to initiate a fuel price volatility reduction program. As a result, a settlement was remared in 2002 regarding physical and financial fuel price hedging which was substanently opproved by the Commission.

#### 2.1 Commission Hedging Order

The Commission's current hadging policy, which reflects the 2002 settlement, is embodied in the Hedging Order. This ofter was issued October 30, 2002 in Docket No. 011605-EI, Review of Investor-Owned Stetric Utilities Risk Management Policies and Procedures. The Hedging Order approved a cethomat referred to as the Proposed Resolution of Issues. It established a framework and direction for the Commission and the parties to follow with respect to fuel procurement risk management for the four investor-owned generating utilities. The settlement was entered into by FP&L, PEF, TEC, the Florida Industrial Users Group, and the Office of Public Counsel. Gulf Power agreed to the settlement upon a modification made during the hearing in the locket held August 12, 2002.

The Hedging Order specifies and describes the filing requirements for each utility in the annual fuendocket, including filings of both Risk Management Plans and results. The order pecifies that financial and physical hedging costs are authorized for recovery through the Fuel Ost Recovery clause. These costs include gains and losses on futures contracts, premiums on options contracts, net settlements on swaps, and transaction costs. The Hedging Order also specifies that the incremental operating and maintenance expenses associated with establishing a hedging program are also recoverable through the fuel clause.

### 2.2 Hedging Principles

Hedging fuel procurement is not intended to reduce the overall fuel costs of an electric utility, but rather to level prices over time by mitigating the impact of price volatility. In all hedging strategies, the common denominator is the desire to establish, in advance, an accentable known price rather than experience the rise or fall in price that occurs over time.

Many firms and business entities that require large volumes of one or more commedities Ore Hity in the production of their products engage in hedging as a tool to manage price Hedging, in its simplest form, is a process whereby a price is established at the time a initiation ime in the of a contract for some or all of a commodity that will be bought or sol at 3 me future. Hedging involves the buying or selling of a contract that establishes brice with the intent of reducing price uncertainty. These contracts are legally g a reements to buy or ..... sell a commodity or financial instrument at a future date. Hedging conflicts are standardized according to the quality, quantity, delivery time, and location for each compudity.

Hedging positions are distinctly different from the positions even though the tools used for hedging, for the most part, can also be used for speculation. Hedging is an activity designed to reduce price uncertainty, whereas spectration increases price uncertainty with the anticipation that market movements can be conjectly produced and profits can be made from such predictions. Speculators assume the risk that he gers try to avoid and usually have no commercial interest in the commodities uncertainty the functions.

Following issuance of the Commission's Hudging Order in 2002, each of the four utilities developed financial hedging programs of managing price volatility in the fuel it purchases to generate electricity for curtomers. Today, each IOU hedges a majority of its natural gas and/or residual oil purchases.

## 2.3 Financial Exchange and Over-the-Counter Transactions

The pichas of a financial hedge is a standardized process initiated either in accordance with the International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. (ISDA) or directly through a commodity exchange. However, the prices of contracts for any particular delivery month often change transformed day-to-day depending on numerous developments that influence market precess For energy-related commodities, such as natural gas and residual oil, factors such as veather productions, OPEC pricing policies, and a multitude of technical factors can cause the pices of pontracts to change.

There are two types of hedging contracts, which are distinguished by the way they are trided: either directly with a financial exchange or through an over-the-counter financial partner. The prices of commodities are determined in a highly-efficient central marketplace or within financial exchanges.

13

Exchange market transactions, commonly called *futures* transactions, can be initiated by soliciting open market bids and offers from all interested parties on the exchange floor. The prices are based on the amount that speculators and investors are willing to pay for various commodities on the trading floors of the exchanges. The exchanges provide price information that can be considered the benchmark for determining the value of a particular commodity at given time. The New York Mercantile Exchange (NYMEX) is the world's largest physical commodity futures exchange. Activity on the NYMEX trading floors and its electronic rading system establishes worldwide benchmarks for energy commodities, such as natural gar Another financial exchange designed for commodities trading is the Intercontinental Exchange (CE). ICE is an electronic Internet platform designed specifically for over-the-counter coding. Both NYMEX and ICE provide accessible around-the-clock commodity exchange information.

The process of trading futures through exchange markets can diministe the risk that comes from unknown future prices. However, manual trading directly with a financial exchange can create burdensome margin requirements for utilities and can also as increase the risk of negatively impacting the market once the utility's purchase intent is accorded.

As an alternative to manual trading, hedging contracts can be traded between a utility and a financial institution outside of the exchange. Investment tanks and other securities dealers can serve as the contracting party when completing over the counter (OTC) derivative transactions. These organizations are commonly referred to as financial counterparties.

To provide for a safe trading environment with financial counterparties, the International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) created a contract (the ISDA Master Agreement) for all derivatives transactions. The ISDA Master Agreement is a standardized contract that allows the parties to select certain opticate. The ISDA Master Agreement provides an extended guarantee that a trade will be settled as originally negotiated. Utilities may have multiple financial counterparty relation mips in prace to seek the best hedging opportunity at any point in time.

## 2.4 Financial Derivatives and Instruments

Hedging instruments in the form of contractual agreements between two parties to buy or sell assets (e.g. commodities) at a pre-determined price at a future date are known as *financial derivatives*. Then value derives from the price of the underlying asset. The pre-set price is called the future rate, the future date is called the delivery date or final settlement date. The parties to the contract are *obligated* to fulfill the contract on the settlement date. There are many hedging instruments hat a utility can use to achieve hedging objectives. The more common types of instruments are:

Physical hedges Financial swaps Call and Put options

Collars

#### 2.4.1 Physical Hedge

A physical hedge is a contract between two parties to buy or sell a commodity (e.g., natural gas) at a pre-agreed future point in time. For example, a utility will secure a fixed price for a quantity of natural gas and agree to pay that price directly to a supplier for receipt of the natural gas at a future date. The natural gas itself is to be delivered upon the specified delivery date and at a specified delivery point, rather than being traded out with offsetting contracts in purpose of a physical hedge is to lock-in a fixed purchase price for physical delivery of the commodity.

In a physical hedge, either the utility or supplier may either incur a last depending on the current market value of the fuel at the time of delivery. For example ume the utility enters into a physical hedge with a supplier to buy natural gas from the supplier at \$7 per MMBtu a year from now. At the time of delivery, the market price spikes to nð \$10 per MMBtu. The supplier must deliver the gas to the utility at \$7 Btu, thus incurring .Mit a loss of \$3 per MMBtu. In other words, a large differential can build up b tween the contracted price and the market price on the day of delivery. If the supplier on not compensate for this loss, the supplier may incur a financial hardship which could jeopard he delivery of fuel to the utility.

#### 2.4.2 Financial Swap

A financial swap is a contractual agreement weer of floating (market or spot) price is exchanged for a fixed price on a future, specified one. If financial swap is initiated directly with an OTC counterparty. Unlike physical height, financial swaps are not exercised to take receipt of the commodity being traded. In other words a financial swap is a futures transaction where no commodity changes hands. These financial swap transactions will offset a separate transaction for the physical fuel.

A swap transaction onsist of two separate components: a contract with a physical supplier and a contract with a chancier counterparty. This is shown in Exhibit 1. First, the utility contracts with a suppline to a specific quantity of gas to be delivered at an agreed upon date. The utility will pay the market price at the time of delivery.

The utility then regonates a contract with its financial counterparty to secure a fixedprice of a specifier volume of MMBtu. This is shown in Exhibit 2. At the time of settlement, the utility agrees a pay the counterparty the agreed-upon fixed price, and the counterparty agrees to pay in utility, the current NYMEX market price.

to complete the swap, the utility will merge these two separate deals to complete the ansaction. From the utility's perspective the NYMEX market price will offset both contracts (i.) the counterparty pays the utility the NYMEX market price, then pays the supplier NYMEX market price upon delivery.) Therefore, the actual cost paid by the utility is the agreed-upon price that it paid the counterparty. The complete transaction is detailed in Exhibit 3.



#### 2.4.3 Call and Put Options

Similar to swaps, options also take the form of a financial contract that is intended to offset a physical gas purchase. However, the purchaser of an Option contract is *not obligated* to buy the underlying contract if it does not hit a target price. The purchaser pays a *premium* at inception for this benefit. Like swaps, options provide price protection against an adverse price move. Additionally, as with swap contracts, for every option buyer there must be a seller to take on the opposite side of the transaction. There are two types of options: *calls* and *puts*. In the case of either a call or put, the option buyer (option holder) must pay the option seller (option writer) a premium to enter the contract. Regardless of how the market swings, the most an option puyer can lose is the option premium. Premiums are typically a percentage of the total to buyer and can vary depending on market conditions.

A call option gives the buyer the right, but not the obligation, to purchase a particular futures contract at a specific price anytime during the life of the option. Whether or not the buyer executes the option, the seller will still collect the premium. The upper of a call option wants the price of the underlying instrument to rise in the future. The seller expects that it will not, or is willing to give up some of the profit from a price rise is maximum for the premium paid. The seller, or writer, collects the premium. At the time of sequence, if the market price is higher than the contract price, the purchaser will initiate the call. However, if the market price is lower than the contract price, the purchaser will simplified the all expire unexercised.

A put option gives the buyer the right but not ne obligation, to sell a particular contract at a specific price anytime during the life of the option. The buyer of a put option believes the price of the underlying instrument will fall in he future. The seller does not believe the price will fall. Like a call option, the writer of the put collects the premium. At the time of settlement, if the market price is below the comparison the purchaser will initiate the put. However, if the market price is higher than the optimation of the put will not be transacted by the purchaser.

#### 2.4.3 Collars

Options provide for risk-relating protection since owners of options are not obligated to buy the underlying contract; however, owners must be concerned about the option premiums. A *collar* is a two-part action strategy that involves the combination of a *put* and *call* option. A collar position is made by selling a put option at one strike price<sup>2</sup> while simultaneously purchasing a all option at a lower price. This trade gets its name because the position is essentially "tallard" between two prices. Depending on the agreed-upon premiums, the cost to create threelits may be "costless" or offsetting, or there could be a premium differential.

For example, assume natural gas is currently trading at \$7 per MMBtu in June 2008. A stillity trader expects that the price of natural gas will decrease within a year. However, the unity trader also remembers the natural gas price spikes in 2003 and 2005. As a result, the trader decides to institute a collar trade. To collar this position for one year out, the utility trader burs a May 2009 call at \$5 per MMBtu with a \$1 premium. The trader simultaneously sells a put for \$3 per MMBtu with a \$1 premium. Since the premiums of both options are the same

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> The fixed price at which the owner of an option can purchase (in the case of a call) or sell (in the case of a put) the underlying commodity is known as the *strike price* or *exercise price*.

price, the net cost of this initial trade is \$0 to the utility trader. The trader now knows that no matter what happens to natural gas prices, the utility, upon settlement, will pay between \$3 to \$5 per MMBtu of natural gas. That is the call creates a cap of \$5 if the market is trading higher in May and the put creates a floor of \$3 if trading is lower.

#### 2.5 Margins and Credit Agreements

Margins are good-faith deposits required of both buyers and sellers to ensure full iment of contract obligations. Margins are determined on the basis of market risk and an inemality set at a percentage (e.g., 2 to 5 percent) of the value of the commodity represented in the fatures contract. The initial margin requirement is the amount required to be contacter ized in order to initiate a trade. Thereafter, the amount required to be kept in collateral unualthe polition is closed is the maintenance margin. Trading directly with a commodity exchange, such as the NYMEX, requires the establishment of margin reserves.

Typically, a transaction initiated between a utility and counter, by does not require a margin deposit. When the utility establishes an OTC counterparty relationship, it will assess and evaluate the credit stability of the financial counterparty relationship, it will assess and evaluate the credit stability of the financial counterparty relationship, it will perform the same evaluation on the utility, and a bilateral credit agreement is established. These credit limits may be modified if there is a change in either company credit stability. If necessary, the companies can establish lines of credit to supplement transin requirements.

#### 2.6 Accounting for Hedges

During the life of the ledge transactions, changes in market value must also be properly reflected for management reporting and financial accounting purposes. In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (FAS) Not 133 Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. FAS 133 represents the framework of accounting rules that standardize the accounting for all derivative instruments. FAS 133 requires that all derivatives are to be mark-to-market and recorded on e dities balance sheets as separate assets or liabilities at fair value. Mark-to-market is the value of a wedge settlement price versus the current market price.

## 2.7 Internal Controls

The enactment of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act in 2002 by the U.S. Congress marked major changes to the regulation of financial practice and corporate governance. The Act contains 11 titles, or sections, ranging from additional Corporate Board responsibilities to criminal penalties for inaccurate financial reporting. Furthermore, the Act incorporated formal procedures to trengthen organizational reporting relationship lines and accountability among other functions.

Each utility included in this review has implemented internal controls and evaluation systems to facilitate compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. One internal control implemented

is the establishment of a three-tier organizational structure: separate *front, middle*, and *back* offices. Each office is designed to provide oversight of the other. The *front* office is responsible for executing hedging transactions. The *middle* office ensures data integrity of the transactions as well as assessing credit worthiness of counterparties. The *back* office is the financial reporting entity for the utility and regulates the accounting functions (receivables/payables) to ensure the all hedging transactions are recorded in compliance with accounting standards (i.e., FAS 133).

Background and Perspective

19

## 6.0 Tampa Electric Company

## 6.1 Fuel Procurement

#### What types of fuel does the company purchase for its generation fleet?

Tampa Electric Company's generation fleet is comprised of a combination of dal, natural gas, and fuel oil units. In 2007, approximately 55 percent of its fuel consumption was coal, 45 percent natural gas, and 1 percent oil.

For its natural gas physical supply portfolio, Tampa Electric has his orically used a combination of long-term, base-load contracts, take-or-release monthly contracts, a daily call purchases. In 2007, Tampa Electric secured approximately per solution of non-atural gas under base-load contracts, percent through take-or-release contracts, and percent with daily contracts. Each contract stipulates that Tampa Electric will paymark t price at delivery. Tampa Electric does not currently have any fixed price, long-term physical contracts in place.

#### How does the company structure its Fuel Procurement Organization?

Tampa Electric Company's fuel procusament anchons are handled within its Fuel Management Division. This division is head a by the Wice-President of Fuel Management. The Fuel Management division is comprised of the units.

- Gas Supply and Wholesale
- Fuel Services and Systems, add
- Wholesale Marketing on The

The division is responsible for the fuel transactions for both Tampa Electric Company and Peoples Gas Systems, Inc.

# What is the company's soal in using financial derivatives when purchasing fuel?

TEC's for purchasing goal is to minimize supply risk to ensure the reliability of electric service to its customers at a reasonable price. To maintain supply reliability, the company takes measure to minimize fuel price volatility. The company believes it is able to best achieve this sear mough the use of financial hedging derivatives. Tampa Electric states that its approved edging claim allows the company to reduce the price fluctuations common in the natural gas commodilies market.

# How does the company separate its fuel procurement responsibilities for its regulated and non-regulated entities?

The Fuel Management division is only responsible for TECO Energy's regulated companies. This includes both Tampa Electric Company and Peoples Gas Systems, Inc. The

20

division is responsible for both the financial and physical purchasing of fuel for both entities. While both companies, Tampa Electric and Peoples Gas, are regulated by the Commission, each is regulated under different industry-specific cost-recovery rules. Tampa Electric is regulated as an investor-owned electric utility and Peoples Gas as an investor-owned local gas distribution company. Currently, the staff of the Fuel Management division transact business for both entities and allocate their work distribution accordingly.

## 6.2 Hedging Strategy

## What is the company's current and historical management philosophy and strategy toward fuel procurement hedging activities?

Tampa Electric views its fuel procurement hedging program as rise-reducing in nature, and believes that hedging is effective for accomplishing the goal or reducing natural gas price volatility. Tampa Electric does not initiate hedges for fuel oil since it responsents only 1 percent of the company's total fuel consumption. The company distorically and currently operates its hedging program with the objective of managing risk to ensure reliability of electric service to its customers at a reasonable price.

Tampa Electric executes its management ophil sophy by implementing an executive management approved natural gas hedging program. This includes the installation of controls that are consistent with industry practices and equirements. Such controls include contracting with qualified counterparties to increase liquiday, maintaining a minimum forward hedge volume percentage by month, manufacture databases and reports to monitor activity, and maintaining separation of duties

## Does the company have adequate policies and procedures for its fuel procurement hedging program?

Tampa Dectrices helping program is supported by detailed policies and procedures that provide the fructure, merating practices, and restrictions for the Tampa Electric staff responsible for the execution of hedging transactions. The following practices and procedures promote efficient and accurate processing of hedging transactions:

#### TECO Energy Risk Management Policy

Tampa Electric Company Wholesale Marketing and Fuels Policies and Procedures

TECO Energy's Risk Management Policy applies to TECO Energy, Inc. and to all of its subsidiaries. The objective of the Energy Risk Management Policy is to establish guidelines for limiting, monitoring, and controlling the financial risks related to energy commodity transactions. Within this context, the objective of risk management and internal control is to assure that TECO Energy's trading transaction activities do not expose the company to unacceptable losses. The Energy Risk Management Policy is approved by the Board of

Directors. It requires the approval of the Risk Authorizing Committee for all of Tampa Electric's derivative transactions. Specific procedures featured in the *Energy Risk Management Policy* address organizational responsibilities, data management, deal transactions and validations, and the methodology to evaluate, measure, mitigate, and report credit risk.

The purpose of the company's Wholesale Marketing and Fuels Policies and Procedures is to provide management direction for assessing long and short-term capacity and energy markets. Included in the procedures are the company's fuel procurement strategy, process descriptions for forecasting fuel and transportation requirements, and contract administration.

Audit staff believes that these policies and procedures provide appropriately detail and provide a clear understanding of the responsibilities and expectations surrounding the company's hedging program. Management policies appear to be consistent with the expectations of TECO Energy's Board of Directors and TECO Energy's overall tolerance of risk. Audit staff believes that Tampa Electric's policies and procedures that support the company's hedging program efficiently track, monitor, and evaluate the company's hedging strategies.

#### What are the types of financial instruments used by the company?

Since 2004, Tampa Electric has used over-the-counter swaps to initiate hedging transactions. Tampa Electric chose swaps because these transactions do not require margin calls or a premium. The number of financial hedges executed is driven directly by the forecasted quantity of natural gas expected to be consumed. Each year this quantity is forecasted as part of the projected fuel and purchase power cost recovery clause filing. EXHIBIT 36 shows Tampa Electric's reliance on swaps during the review period. The chart also shows the number of settled transactions.

Annual Financial Transactions by Instrument Type Tampa Electric Company 2003 – 2007					
Swaps	100%	100%	100%	100%	98%
		가다			開設。
Collars	-	-	•	-	1%
<b>Total Number of Settled Transactions</b>	247	359	280	180	99
Exhibit 36			Sou	rce: Data	Request 2.3

## What are the company's targets and threshold limits for its financial hedging program?

The volume of natural gas Tampa Electric hedges fails between preset minimum and maximum percentages of the expected natural gas consumption level. Hedging targets are established to account for the fluctuations in natural gas usage because of weather, unit

22

performance, market dynamics, and other factors that may impact the company's original natural gas forecasts.

Tampa Electric's hedging strategy is to use a sliding scale approach as shown in **EXHIBIT 37**. The hedging percentage targets represent the minimum and maximum tolerance levels for Tampa Electric's hedging portfolio. Similar to the other utilities in this review. Tampa Electric's policy not to hedge more fuel than forecasted to meet customer demand



Tampa Electric's natural gas hedges are layered over time. As shown in the exhibit, the cumulative volume of natural gas hedges should increase as the actual burn month approaches. For example, assume Tampa Electric traders are initiating hedges to offset July 2008 natural gas forecasted requirements. Within seven to twelve month, but (July 2007 to December 2007), Tampa Electric's traders should have accumulated hages to offset somewhere between appercent and appercent of the July 2008 natural gas forecasted burn. Within six months of 2008, (January through June 2008) traders are expected to have accumulated hedges within a range of a percent to a percent of the July 2004 forecas. The hedging contract must settle and offset against the corresponding month between

The company uses several extoneted systems to track and monitor its financial hedging options. Tampa Electric stationses the services of tracking systems such as the NYMEX, ProphetX, and ICE to monitor the finances markets and determine the current trading ranges for each commodity. This access allows the company to negotiate purchase prices with its counterparties that are in the with the current prices on the NYMEX Exchange floor.

#### Has the company's program operated in a manner that is non-speculative?

outgrassing the market. Tampa Electric further defined speculation as the execution of ansactions that create risks which are incremental and unrelated to the company's normal usiness perations. The *Energy Risk Management Policy* requires systematic consistent hereing that is not driven by price speculation. Additionally, Tampa Electric points to the use of separation of duties to control speculative trading.

Audit staff does not believe that the company's hedging strategy includes any speculative activities. Its overall hedging forecast and the actual hedges to burn ratios are in line with the company's overall strategy. Audit staff believes the company has the necessary controls in place to limit potential speculative activity

23

#### What volume of each fuel type has been hedged for the period 2003-2007?

Tampa Electric's hedging strategy is to implement financial transactions for **interaction** of its forecast fuel consumption. The maximum hedging percentage target represents the maximum tolerance levels that Tampa Electric's hedging portfolio is not expected to exceed.

**EXHIBIT 38** details Tampa Electric's annual percentage of natural gas hedged in relation to the company's forecasted burn volumes for each year 2003 through 2007. For 2003, the exhibit shows 21 percent of Tampa Electric's fuel demands being hedged. During this year, Tampa Electric's hedging program was not fully implemented and Tampa Electric customers experienced a midcourse correction as a result. However, during the remaining years, Tampa Electric has increased the percent of financial hedges initiated under its program. Even with this increase, Tampa Electric has maintained the boundaries of the **Experimental** hedging target.



Exhibit 38

Source: Data Request 2.3

**EXHIBIT 39** shows the monthly and annual percentage of fuel hedged by Tampa Electric in relation to the total fuel burn for each year 2003 through 2007. Hedges may exceed the percentage targets when actual fuel burns are significantly lower than the fuel projections. Factors that influence the variance between forecasted and actual burn include weather, unplanned unit maintenance requirements, and unit outages. Additionally, Tampa Electric does not attempt to sell hedged positions prior to settlement to adjust for actual fuel burns in relation to forecasted burns.

24

Audit staff believes that the yearly averages of fuel hedged against forecast and actual burn demonstrate that the company provides enough flexibility within its strategy to allow for fluctuations in its fuel consumption. As shown in the exhibit, the highest yearly average percentage of fuel hedged in relation to total fuel burned did not exceed 76 percent.

		Tampa Electri 2003-2			
January	86%	75%	44%	30.	41%
			iliii yaan ahaan ahaa Ahaan ahaan ahaa		
March	65%	56%	38%	52%	28%
		가지가 있는 것이 가지? 것이 요구가 아파 가지? 것이 가지?			
May	69%	80%	61%	2.90	12%
July	68%	82%	58%	▲ 37%	8%
		an a		ana an	
September	74%	88%	- D00	69%	33%
					· 有些 · · · · · · · ·
November	97%	81%	48%	81%	31%
early Average	73%	76%	52%	51%	27%

# What are the total costs associated with the fuel procurement hedging program?

Tampa Electric has historically initiated financial swaps through its approved financial counterparties, onder his structure, the company does not incur any direct transaction costs for fees for this structure. The company experienced hedging gains of \$8.4 million in 2004 and \$53.2 million in 2005. The company had losses of \$54.4 in 2006 and \$59.7 million in 2007. For the review neriod, Tancoa Electric has a net loss of approximately \$55.1 million. EXHIBIT 40 details in annual hedging gains and losses for the period 2003 through 2007.

The stabilizing impact of the company's hedging program is shown in EXHIBIT 41. This char details the average monthly cost of natural gas purchased by Tampa Electric and the corresponding average monthly hedging settlement price. As shown, for 2003 through 2006, the company's hedging settlements were consistently stable while the market experienced several takes in price. Also, the hedging settlements were less than the corresponding market prices. As an example, in 2005, Tampa Electric paid an average \$ 9.09 per MMBtu for natural gas, yet its corresponding hedging prices averaged \$6.03 per MMBtu. In early 2007, the company did experience a rise in its hedging costs, but overall, its hedging costs minimized the spikes that occurred within its natural gas prices during the review period.

Tampa Electric Company

25



Exhibit 40

Source: Interviews



Audit staff requested for TEC to provide any perceived transaction costs associated with financial derivatives. In response TEC stated it does not pay transaction fees or commissions when initiating or settling a swap transaction with counterparties. Additionally, like the other utilities in this review, TEC utilizes multiple financial counterparties to negotiate the best possible strike price when executing hedging transactions. Furthermore, TEC does not believe the price differential within the bid-ask range equates to transaction costs.



As part of the Commission's Hedging Order, Tampa Electric recovered incremental hedging operating and maintenance costs through the Commission's Fuel Cost Recovery docket through 2006. Exhibit 42 shows Tampa Electric's annual operating and maintenance costs for the company's hedging program for each year 2003 through 2006. On average, the operating and maintenance costs represent less than one-third of one percent of the company's system per generation annual fuel costs.

Percen	tage of Hedging	g Operating and	Maintenance Cost	<b>I</b> N
		of System Net Ge		
		a Electric Comp		
	1 (1111)/	2003-2006		
		2005-2000		
O&M Hedging Cost	\$210,649	\$164,960	\$210,045	\$108,746
Percent of O&M to				
Total Fuel Cost	0.03%	0.02%	0.03%	<u>0.02%</u>
Exhibit 42	<b></b>		Source: TEC	Annual A1 Filing

# Does the company believe its fuel procuration and longing program has been successful, and what are the benefits astociated with the program?

Due to the significant number of rational gas market price variances since 1999, and the increased concern about the availability of energy commodities, Tampa Electric believes, as shown in Exhibit 41, that the financial hearing market has helped reduce peak-and-valley price fluctuations. The company believer unit to program has met its goal of reducing fuel price volatility for its customers. The net effect has been more consistent fuel cost for its customers, which would not have been the case without its hedging program.

Tampa Electric states that tince the inception of financial hedging, Tampa Electric has become a more effective purchaser of fuel oil and natural gas. Specific to hedging activities, the company has expanded the number of counterparties, enhanced natural gas procurement flexibility and reliability brough pipeline and receipt point diversification, and extended the time line for natural gas nedging.

## 6.3 Risk Performance

Dees the company employ adequate management oversight and controls of the fuel procurement hedging program to ensure prudent operations?

The TECO Energy Board of Directors is responsible for approving the company's Risk Management policies and its overall tolerance for risk. TECO Energy also has a Risk Advisory Committee, appointed by the Chief Executive Officer, which is responsible for developing the

company's risk policies. The committee reports to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.

The Risk Advisory Committee reviews the company's Risk Management policy and recommends any changes to the Board. This Committee establishes guidelines for the risk management group and establishes the credit underwriting and credit exposure standards. This group reviews and approves the transacting strategy and the counterparty credit and threshold limits for Tampa Electric Company's hedging program. The committee meets at least monthly and is chaired by the CFO of TECO Energy. The director of the Independent Risk Oversight group works with the Risk Advisory Committee on all relevant risk-related events.

## How does the company segregate responsibilities between its front, middle, and back office divisions?

Tampa Electric operates using a three-layer structure to ensure adequate separation of duties and oversight. The company implemented in 2004 its front, middle, and back office organizational structure for its financial hedging functions. This structure establishes a mechanism for the company to independently monitor and review the financial transactions initiated by the Fuel Management division staff.

The front office staff is responsible for initiating and executing the financial hedging transactions. This office staff uses an approved set of guidelines and procedures when initiating a financial hedging transaction. The traders must initiate transactions in accordance with the Risk Oversight Committee's approved strategy. All transactions must be documented and recorded by the trader for independent verification and confirmation.

The Risk Oversight group, commonly referred to as the middle office, is an independent group whose Director reports to the Treasurer of TECO Energy. The middle office is charged with verifying all daily trading transaction completed by the front office. This group monitors the compliance with the company's Energy Risk Policy. Its staff negotiates the acceptable terms for each financial counterparty relationship and monitors and verifies internal daily transactions. Also, middle office staff monitors and evaluates the counterparty's credit limits and ensures that the internal thresholds are maintained.

The TECO Energy Settlements group, commonly referred to as the back office, is responsible for the accounting transactions for the financial hedges, coal, natural gas, oil, propane and transportation costs of the company. The back office verifies that the volume of receivables and deliverables balances, including the financial derivatives of each hedging transaction. This group processes each transaction invoice and verifies the accuracy of each transaction.

Audit staff believes that TEC's front, middle, and back office organizational structure is adequate and provides the company with the appropriate separation of duties necessary to prevent variances from the approved trading procedures. Each of the independent offices has detailed procedures that outline its responsibilities.

28

Does the company have an adequate fuel procurement Risk Management Plan?

Tampa Electric Company has annually filed its Risk Management Plan as prescribed in the Hedging Order. The company has not made any significant changes to its plans submitted during the period 2003-2007. The Order specifies that each plan address elements of En fibh TFB-4 of the Order (ATTACHMENT C), along with "the quantities of fuel and purchaser power that each utility expects to hedge through physical and financial hedging, to the execut ach forecasts are made."<sup>3</sup>

TEC's plan addresses the majority of the eleven elements within Ex its. TDB-4, Components of a Utility's Fuel Procurement Risk Management Plan. The company's plan provides specifics of the company's hedging objectives and the risk assessment Utilipplementing its plan. The company does adequately describe the corporate overright of the hedging strategy. Tampa Electric also does include the annual quantities of fuel it estimate will be covered by financial hedges. For 2007, this amount is consistent with the company's approved hedging strategy presented to audit staff during this review.

There are two requirements which audit staff does but believe the company's plans have met the requirements of the Hedging Order. These are

- Verify that the utility's corporate task paricy clearly delineates individual and group transactions limits and autoprotations for all fuel procurement activities,
- Verify that the utility mersuresient policies and procedures to implement its strategy,

The risk plans make reference with suppoints, but do not contain the detail necessary to verify that adequate processes are in that a During the course of this review, audit staff did verify that Tampa Electric has the proceederes in place to meet these requirements. However, inclusion within its plan is necessary for saff to evaluate its process going forward.

# How does the company evaluate and select the counterparties with which it conducts financial hedging transactions?

Tak oa Electric Company uses a group of financial counterparties to transact its over-theounter mancial hedging transactions. The front office group identifies any potential financial counterparties with which Tampa Electric would like to conduct business. The middle office concerns a risk evaluation and to evaluate the potential counterparty's credit stability. If the counterparty meets TEC's criteria, the middle office negotiates and executes the International Swaps and Derivatives Association agreement and activates the relationship.

29

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> P 5, TFB-4, Florida Public Service Commission Order No. PSC-02-1484-FOF-EI.
Both the financial hedging transactions for Tampa Electric Company and Peoples Gas Systems are purchased under the Tampa Electric Company ISDA relationship. Tampa Electric management states that Peoples Gas Systems, Inc. does not have a stand-alone credit rating; therefore, it must conduct transactions under the umbrella Tampa Electric Company. Tampa Electric management states that Peoples Gas System is a division of Tampa Electric Company that is also an incorporated entity within the State of Florida. Typically, when the Fuel Management division initiates a hedging transaction with a counterparty, a portion will be allocated to Tampa Electric and a portion to Peoples Gas System, Inc. On average, Tampa Electric underwrites the majority of each transaction.

Tampa Electric management states that since both entities are regulated by the Commission, the Peoples Gas transactions being purchased under the Tampa Electric Company name should not cause concern. The allocation of transactions is monitored and evaluated to ensure that all costs incurred are accurately allocated to the correct company. Because of this unique arrangement, audit staff believes that the Commission should monitor this arrangement to ensure that neither customer-base is directly or indirectly disadvantaged by this relationship.



Exhibit 43

Source: Data Request 2.2

Currently, Tampa Electric has 23 counterparty relationships. EXHIBIT 43 lists each counterparty, its S&P and Moody's credit rating, and its internal Tampa Electric credit limit.

30

Tampa Electric Company

Along with its financial counterparty relationships, Tampa Electric has a dual relationship with eight counterparties in which the company initiates both financial hedging transactions and also contracts for physical supply of natural gas. The counterparties with dual relationships are:



In 2006 and 2007, Tampa Electric initiated both financial and physical transactions with three counterparties. In 2005 the company initiated both with five counterparties and in 2004, four counterparties.

# Does the company conduct audits of its fue procurement program and hedging instruments?

TECO Energy's Internal Audit Division unizes a combination of risk-based assessments and a five-year planned review cycle to ensure the company is in compliance with internal and external policies and regulation. In 2007, the company conducted a *Derivatives and Hedging Audit*, as a part of its risk-based evaluation process. The audit included all of the TECO Energy's operating companies. The company some minor findings related to how the company was documenting accounting cansactions. Management states it has addressed all of the findings listed in the report. The company did not complete any hedging related audits during 2003 through 2006 other than the annual Sarbanes-Oxley based reviews.

Overall, audit staff believes that the company's Internal Audit division has placed adequate focus and mouries or monitoring its hedging process. Continued focus on this area is necessary to ensure that the Msks associated with the program are evaluated and contained to an acceptable level

# In sufficiency, what changes should the company make to its hedging program?

Audit staff believes that Tampa Electric has developed an effective hedging program. he com any has achieved its goal of decreasing volatility of the price of its natural gas purchases during 2003 through 2007. The company's hedging goals and purchases have been consistent and are non-speculative.

Tampa Electric Company's hedging goal is to maintain supply reliability while minimizing fuel price volatility. The company has achieved this goal by implementing a nonspeculative financial hedging strategy for its natural gas purchases. Tampa Electric employs a layered hedging strategy that allows its financial hedges to be purchased up to 24 months out

Tampa Electric Company

from settlement. During the 24 month period, the company will continue to purchase financial hedges up to the maximum established target. This allows the company to be more effective at averaging the impacts of market costs over time.

Audit staff notes the following positions from its review of the Tampa Electric:

- The company's policies and procedures provide appropriately detailed and clear understanding of the responsibilities and expectations surrounding the company's hedging program.
- The company has not incurred any fees associated with purchases of financial swaps from its counterparties.
- Tampa Electric's Internal Audit division has placed adequate focus and resources on monitoring its hedging process.
- The hedging relationship between Tampa Electric and its affiliate Peoples Gas System should be monitored to ensure neither company's customers are disadvantaged by this relationship.
- Audit staff believes that TEC's front, middle, and back office organizational structure is adequate and provides the company with the appropriate separation of duties necessary to prevent variances from the approved trading procedures. Each independent office has detailed procedures outlining its responsibilities.
- There are two points which audit staff does not believe the Risk Management Plans have met the requirements of the Hedging Order:
  - Verify that the utility's corporate risk policy clearly delineates individual and group transaction limits and authorizations for all fuel procurement activities.
  - Verify that the utility has sufficient policies and procedures to implement its strategy.

Tampa Electric Company

3.2

				$\langle$
		<	SP.	
	Ĺ	A		
	У~			
çÇ				

Tampa Electric Company

۰.

.

# ATTACHMENT A

		2007 Fuel Generation Mix (%MWH)			
	FP&L	60.68%	9.91%	7.04%	2.41%
	Progress Energy	23%	8%	51%	17%
	Source: Annual Sche	dule A filings, 0	80001-3	$\mathbf{\mathbf{N}}$	
		Ň			
·	Ć				
·		S.			
				·	
				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	

. F

•

## ATTACHMENT C

## DOCKET NO. 011605-EI ORDER NO. PSC-02-1484-FOF-FI EXHIBIT TFB-4

### COMPONENTS OF A UTILITY'S FUEL PROCUREMENT RISK MANAGEME PLAN

When a utility files its fuel procurement risk management plan with the formatission, this plan should include information regarding the following components:

- 1. Identify overall quantitative and qualitative risk management objective
- 2. Identify minimum quantity of fuel to be hedged;
- 3. Identify and quantify each risk, general and specific, that the tailit may encounter with its fuel procurement;
- 4. Describe the utility's oversight of its fuel procurement activities;
- 5. Verify that the utility provides its fuel progrement apprivities with independent and unavoidable oversight:
- 6. Describe the utility's corporate risk policy egaring fuel procurement activities;
- 7. Verify that the utility's corporate tak policy dearly delineates individual and group transaction limits and authorizations for all fuel procurement activities;
- 8. Describe the utility's strategy to refill its nek management objectives;
- 9. Verify that the utility has sufficient policies and procedures to implement its strategy:
- 10. Indicate the number and ype (personnel who are responsible for fulfilling the utility's risk management objectives:
- 11. Verify that the utility has a sufficient number and type of personnel who can fulfill its risk management objective.
- 12. Describe the unlity's cost enective response to each general and specific risk associated with its fuel procurement
- 13. Describe the unity supporting system for fuel procurement activities;
- 14. Verify that the use ity's reporting system consistently and comprehensively identifies, measures, and monitors all forms of risk associated with fuel procurement activities; and
- 15. If the trility has current limitations in implementing certain hedging techniques that would purpled a net benefit to ratepayers. Provide the details of a plan for developing the escurces, policies, and procedures for acquiring the ability to use effectively the hedging technique.

35

### ATTACHMENT D

# Hedging Strategies of Other State Commissions

Audit staff collected data from other state utility commissions to gather a sampling of how other utilities' hedging programs are regulated throughout the country. Audit staff has able to obtain limited information on the practices of other states, but determined that hedging programs vary throughout the country. Approaches range from required pre-approval of a utility's hedging program to establishing the percentage of recoverable cost from leaging based on total fuel volumes.

Specifically, the California Utilities Commission has established rules that an are Pacific Gas and Electric to file its hedging program prior to implementation. To guittors work with the utility to verify and approve the overall hedging strategy. One the approval is granted, the utility will initiate its hedging program under the agreed upon plan. G&E is allowed to recover all hedging gains and losses through its annual fuel docket.

The Georgia Public Service Commission has recently implemented a change to its hedging rules that establishes a similar process for recencia Fourier Company. Georgia Power must submit its hedging strategy to the Georgia Commission on a quarterly basis prior to implementation. The Georgia Commission evaluates and determines the viability of the strategy plan. Once approved by the Commission coorgia Power implements its plan and can pass 100 percent of its gains and losses through its fuel cause. The Georgia plan requires a volume-cost averaging approach to hedging, which empirates the subjectivity that can arise in the hedging process.

Two other southern sates dissistippi and Alabama, also have hedging rules in place. Both states allow the utilities to edge their fuel procurement. Each state allows up to 75 percent of the utilities' fuel budgets to be hedged. The utilities are allowed to pass 100 percent of gains or losses through the fuel clause. The hedging plans are not pre-approved by either state Commission.

CONN N

3-6

COMMISSIONERS: MATTHEW M. CARTER II, CHAIRMAN LISA POLAK EDGAR KATRINA J. MCMURRIAN NANCY ARGENZIANO NATHAN A. SKOP



OFFICE OF COMMISSION CLERK **ANN COLE** COMMISSION CLERK (850) 413-6770

WEIDENTIAL Hublic Service Commiss

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

**DATE:** June 18, 2008

TO: James D. Beasley, Esquire/Ausley & McMullen

FROM: Marguerite H. McLean, Office of Commission Clerk

Acknowledgement of Receipt of Confidential Filing RE:

This will acknowledge receipt of a CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENT filed in Docket Number undocketed or, if filed in an undocketed matter, concerning information contained in staff's draft audit report of review of fuel procurement hedging practices of Florida's investor-owned electric utilities, and filed on behalf of Tampa Electric Company. The document will be maintained in locked storage.

If you have any questions regarding this document, please contact Marguerite DOCUMENT NUMBER- DATE FPSC-CONMISSION CLERN 80 JUN 18 McLean, Deputy Clerk, at (850) 413-6770.

> CAPITAL CIRCLE OFFICE CENTER • 2540 SHUMARD OAK BOULEVARD • TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-0850 An Affirmative Action / Equal Opportunity Employer

PSC Website: http://www.floridapsc.com

Internet E-mail: contact@psc.state.fl.us

0**5 | 8**4

# AUSLEY & MCMULLEN

#### ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW

227 SOUTH CALHOUN STREFT P.O. BOX 391 (ZIP 32302) TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32301 (850) 224-9115 FAX (850) 222-7560

June 19, 2008

### HAND DELIVERED



NB JUN 19 PH 4: 2F

080436

Ms. Ann Cole, Director Office of Commission Clerk Florida Public Service Commission 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

> Re: UNDOCKETED - Review of Fuel Procurement Hedging Practices of Florida's Investor-Owned Electric Utilities

Dear Ms. Cole:

Enclosed for filing in the above-styled matter are the original and fifteen (15) copies of Tampa Electric Company's Supplement to Request for Confidential Classification of information contained in the Staff's draft audit report of Review of Fuel Procurement Hedging Practices of Florida's Investor-Owed Electric Utilities dated June 2008.

Please acknowledge receipt and filing of the above by stamping the duplicate copy of this letter and returning same to this writer.

Thank you for your assistance in connection with this matter.

Sincerely,

ames D. Beaslev

DROUMENT NUMPER - DATE 05269 JUN 198 FPSC-COMMISSION CLERK'

\_JDB/pp Enclosure

### BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

)

)

In re: Review of Fuel Procurement Hedging Practices of Florida's. Investor-Owned Electric Utilities.

UNDOCKETED FILED: June 19, 2008

### TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY'S SUPPLEMENT TO REQUEST FOR CONFIDENTIAL CLASSIFICATION

Tampa Electric Company ("Tampa Electric" or "the company"), pursuant to Section 366.093, Florida Statutes, and Rule 25-22.006, Florida Administrative Code, supplements its June 18, 2008 Request for Confidential Classification submitted in the above undocketed matter and, in support thereof, says:

1. In its June 18, 2008 Request for Confidential Classification Tampa Electric inadvertently omitted a one-page document identified as Attachment B to the Staff's draft audit report dated June 2008. Attachment B has the heading "Companies' Hedging Strategies Comparative Analysis."

2. Tampa Electric is submitting under separate cover a single confidential version of said Attachment B with confidential information highlighted in yellow and marked "CONFIDENTIAL" in red. Attached hereto as Exhibit "A" are two public versions of the page in question with the confidential information redacted.

3. Tampa Electric hereby requests that said Attachment B be treated as confidential proprietary confidential business information with the same requested duration of confidential classification as set forth in the company's June 18, 2008 submission. Tampa Electric adopts and incorporates herein by reference the same justification for Attachment B as is contained in the June 18, 2008 filing for Bates stamp page numbers. 20, 23 and 24 of the draft audit report, that

DODUMENT NUMBER CATE

0.5269 JUN 198

FPSC-COMMISSION CLERK

being justification (1). The company also incorporates herein by reference the rationale set forth in the company's June 18, 2008 filing, at pages 2 and 3 thereof, for keeping the information in Attachment B confidential and exempt from public disclosure for a minimum of three years.

WHEREFORE, Tampa Electric submits the foregoing as its supplement to the company's June 18, 2008 Request for Confidential Classification.

DATED this  $\underline{/9}$  day of June 2008.

..

Respectfully submitted,

aren Ly

LEE L. WILLIS JAMES D. BEASLEY Ausley & McMullen Post Office Box 391 Tallahassee, Florida 32302 (850) 224-9115

ATTORNEYS FOR TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY

. -JUN-16-2008 12:59 FROM: PSC 8504137077

... ۰.

# ATTACHMENT B

	Companies' Hedging Strategies Comparative Analysis					
			;			مرد <del>میرد.</del> این مرد مرد میرد.
Types of Fuel						-Natural Cas
Hedged 2007 Hedging Instruments				•		Natural Gas: - Swaps 100%
Hedging Tenure						Up to 2 years
2007 Average Hedging Target	-		•	•		Natural Gas:
Percent of 2007 Fuel Hedged to Forecasted Burn						Natural Gas: 73%
Cumulative Hedging Gains/Losses 2003-2007			••••			-\$55,100,000
Number of Financial Counterparties						23

# Exhibit "A"

•

# ATTACHMENT B

	Companies' Hedging Strategics Comparative Analysis					
						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Types of Fuel Hedged						-Natural Gas
2007 Hedging Instruments						Natural Gas: - Swaps 100%
Fledging Tenure						Up to 2 years
2007 Average Hedging Target			· ·	•	-	Natural Gas:
Percent of 2007 Fuel Hedged to Forecasted Burn						Natural Gas: 73%
Cumulative Hedging Gaius/Losses 2003-2007		•	•			-\$55,100,000
Number of Financial Counterparties						23

Exhibit "A"

COMMISSIONERS: MATTHEW M. CARTER II, CHAIRMAN LISA POLAK EDGAR KATRINA J. MCMURRIAN NANCY ARGENZIANO NATHAN A. SKOP

### STATE OF FLORIDA



**OFFICE OF COMMISSION CLERK ANN COLE** COMMISSION CLERK (850) 413-6770

CONFIDENTIAL Hublic Service Commission

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

**DATE:** June 19, 2008

TO: James D. Beasley, Ausley Law Firm

FROM: **Ruth Nettles, Office of Commission Clerk** 

RE: Acknowledgement of Receipt of Confidential Filing

This will acknowledge receipt of a CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENT filed in Docket Number 080000 or, if filed in an undocketed matter, concerning Supplement to Request for Confidential Classification of information contained in staff's draft audit report of Review of Fuel Procurement Hedging Practices, and filed on behalf of Tampa Electric Company. The document will be maintained in locked storage.

If you have any questions regarding this document, please contact Marguerite Lockard OCCMENT NUMBER-DJ FPSC-COPIMISSION CL Deputy Clerk, at (850) 413-6770.

CAPITAL CIRCLE OFFICE CENTER • 2540 SHUMARD OAK BOULEVARD • TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-0850 An Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer

PSC Website: http://www.floridupsc.com

Internet E-mail: contact@psc.state.fl.us

PSC/CLK 019-C (Rev. 05/07)

Document2

ഗ